
 
  
 
  
 
 
 
Notice to persons with special needs: For those requiring special assistance or 
accommodation at the meeting, please contact 702-267-1515 or the Relay Nevada TTY 
telephone 7-1-1 at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting.  
  
The Chairman reserves the right to hear agenda items out of order, combine two or 
more agenda items for consideration, remove an item from the agenda, or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time.  All items are action items 
unless otherwise noted. 
 
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and spokespersons 
for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  
 
Electronic agendas can be found at:  HTTP://WWW.CITYOFHENDERSON.COM/ 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 
II. CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 
 
IV. PUBLIC COMMENT 

Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this 
meeting, but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 
241.020).  Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes 
and spokespersons for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
V. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2013 (For Possible Action) 

    
APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM THE CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF  
FEBRUARY 26, 2013. 

 
 
 
 

(CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE)  
 
 

CITY OF HENDERSON 
REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 

 MEETING AGENDA 
 

Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, April 23, 2013 
3:30 p.m. 

City Hall Annex 
City Hall Annex Conference Room 

280 Water Street 
Henderson, Nevada 89015 



 
2. REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR 145 PANAMA 

STREET (For Possible Action) 
  
APPROVE A TENANT IMPROVEMNET GRANT FOR 145 PANAMA STREET. 

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 Note:  Items discussed under Public Comment cannot be acted upon at this 

meeting, but may be referred to a future agenda for consideration (NRS 241.020).  
Individuals speaking on an item will be limited to three (3) minutes and 
spokespersons for a group will be limited to ten (10) minutes.  

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 

Agenda posted prior to 9:00 a.m. on April 10, 2013 at the following locations: 
City Hall Annex, 280 Water Street, Lobby 

City Hall, 240 Water Street, 1st Floor Lobbies (2) 
Multigenerational Center, 250 S. Green Valley Parkway  

Whitney Ranch Recreational Center, 1575 Galleria Drive 
    Fire Station No. 86, 96 Via Antincendio 



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING APRIL 23, 2013  LC-001

 
SUBJECT MINUTES—CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

LOAN COMMITTEE MEETING OF FEBRUARY 26, 2013  
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 
Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve  
 

 
 
 



 
 
  
 
 
 
 

CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
LOAN COMMITTEE 

MINUTES 
February 26, 2013 

 
 
 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 
 

 Chairman Foster called the Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee to order 
at 3:32 p.m. in the City Hall Annex Conference Room, City Hall Annex,  

 280 Water Street, Henderson, Nevada.  
 
II.  CONFIRMATION OF POSTING AND ROLL CALL 
 

 MaryAnne Cruzado, Recording Secretary, confirmed the meeting had been 
noticed in accordance with the Open Meeting Law by posting the Agenda 
three working days prior to the meeting at City Hall, Henderson Convention 
Center, Green Valley Police Substation, and Fire Station No. 86.    

 
 
  Present:  Chairman Tom Foster 
     Tom Fay 
     Michelle Romero 
     Richard Serfas 
              
 
  Excused: Roy Borsellino 
         
    
  Staff:  MaryAnne Cruzado, Administrative Assistant III 
    Mark Backus, Assistant City Attorney 
    April Parra, Minutes Clerk 
    Lisa Sich, Special Projects Accountant 
       
     
  



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 2 
February 26, 2013 – Minutes 
 
 
III. ACCEPTANCE OF AGENDA 

 
(Motion) Ms. Romero introduced a motion to accept the agenda as presented.  The 

vote favoring approval was unanimous.  Chairman Foster declared the motion 
carried.  

 
IV.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

There were no comments presented by the public. 
 

V.  ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

1. MINUTES – CITY OF HENDERSON REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN 
COMMITTEE MEETING OF DECEMBER 18, 2012. 

Recommend approval of the minutes from the City of Henderson Redevelopment 
Agency Loan Committee meeting of December 18, 2012. 

 
(Motion) Mr. Fay introduced a motion to approve the minutes from the City of 
 Henderson Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee meeting of 
 December 18, 2012.  The vote favoring approval was unanimous.   
 Chairman Foster declared the motion carried. 
 
2. MODIFICATION OF LAON TO LISA AND MIKEL CONRAD TO EXCHANGE 

COLLATERAL 
 
Approve modification of loan to Lisa and Mikel Conrad to exchange collateral. 
 
Lisa Sich, Special Projects Accountant, gave a brief summary of the proposed item 
and stated staff recommends approval.  
 
Staff was directed to get a more descriptive list of effects to include make, model, 
serial numbers of equipment, cameras, furniture, and other items serving as 
additional collateral. 
 
Responding to a question by Mr. Serfas regarding if this has happened in the past, 
Ms. Sich answered in the affirmative. 
  

(Motion) Mr. Serfas introduced a motion to approve the modification to the loan and 
exchange the collateral.  The vote favoring approval was unanimous.  
Chairman Foster declared the motion carried.  

 
VI. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 There were no comments presented by the public. 
  



Redevelopment Agency Loan Committee Meeting                                           Page 3 
February 26, 2013 – Minutes 
 
 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to be discussed, the meeting was adjourned at  
 3:38 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
__________________________ 
April Parra,  
Minutes Clerk  



 
 
 

REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY LOAN COMMITTEE 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
REGULAR MEETING APRIL 23, 2013  LC-002

 
SUBJECT REQUEST FOR A TENANT IMPROVEMENT GRANT FOR  

145 PANAMA STREET 
 

PETITIONER Economic Development/Redevelopment Division of the City 
Manager’s Office 
 

RECOMMENDATION Approve 
 

 
 
 



Tenant Improvement Grant Staff Summary 
Loan Committee Meeting 

April 23, 2013 
3:30 pm City Hall Annex Conference Room 

 
Property Address:   145 Panama Street 
Applicant:    Henderson Police Officer’s Association 
Proposed Used:   Office Space w/ Tenant Lease Space 
Redevelopment Area:   Downtown 
City Zoning:  DCC-RD – Downtown Core Commercial 
Design Review Required: Yes 
Building Permit Required: Yes 
 
Summary   
The property at 145 Panama Street has been vacant for an extended period of time. The 
Henderson Police Officer’s Association (HPOA) purchased the building last year and has 
relocated their offices to the space. Additionally, the HPOA has verbal agreements with several 
other agencies to lease tenant space in the building, including NAPSO, Henderson Professional 
Fire Fighter/IAFF1833, and CWA Local 9413. The HPOA expects finalized lease agreements for 
the aforementioned agencies by the time improvements are complete. When all of the agencies 
have relocated their offices to 145 Panama Street, it is expected that fifteen (15) jobs will be 
located at this location. The applicant and tenants intend to use the space for monthly and 
quarterly meetings and training classes, which they expect will generate business to the area 
eateries, caterers, and other service establishments. This application is for a Tenant Improvement 
Grant and will include the following improvements: 
 

• New ceiling tile where needed; 
• Repair and/or install drywall, patch, tape and texture; 
• Electrical upgrades, including switches, canned lighting, and ceiling fans; 
• Upgrade and/or relocate plumbing; 
• Upgrades to restrooms; 
• Cabinets and laminate countertops in reception and kitchen space; 
• New 26 oz carpet; 
• Interior paint. 

 
Eligibility for Funding 
 
Building is 7,960 square feet allowing for a maximum reimbursement of $34,677 or $37,500 
with approved contingencies.  
 
The applicants have provided the following three estimates:    
 
K&N General Construction, Inc. - $67,901.06 
Bobby T’s Building Maintenance - $79,900 



Charger Construction, LLC - $69,354.00 plus $5,646 with approved contingencies for a total of 
$75,000 
 
The applicant intends to use Charger Construction, LLC. The applicant chose to use a bid 
that is not the lowest. The justification is that the lowest bidder did not provide enough 
detail in their bid and the applicant felt there was a high potential for unforeseen costs to 
arise.   
 
Staff Recommendation 
 
This application and the financial capacity and history of the applicants were sent to the National 
Development Council (NDC) for review. The NDC provided a favorable analysis of the 
applicants and expressed no concern regarding their capacity to complete the project.  
 
Based on the improvements that will be made to the building and job creation in the Downtown 
Redevelopment Area, this application furthers the goals and priorities of the Redevelopment 
Agency. 
 
It is the recommendation of staff that the Loan Committee conditionally approve the Tenant 
Improvement Grant to 145 Panama Street in an amount not to exceed $37,500 based on the 
following listed conditions of approval:   
 

1. Applicants obtaining the required building permit prior to construction commencing; 
2. Execution of Grant Agreement; 
3. Applicants submitting all required paperwork for reimbursement;  
4. Applicants to provide Agency with a copy of contractor’s current City of Henderson 

Business License and State Contractor’s License;  
5. Applicants are encouraged to join the Water Street District Business Association. 
 


























































	Loan Committee Agenda 4.23.13
	LC001- Minutes from 2.26.13_AGN 4.23.13
	02-26-13LC FINAL ap_mc_4.23.13
	LC002_ HPOA TI Grant_4.23.13_AGN
	145 Panama_HPOA_Staff Analysis_TIP_042313
	TIP App Pack_145 Panama_HPOA

